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Defendants.
/

INDICTM ENT

The Orand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At a11 times material to this Indictment:

The M edicare Prozram

The Medicare Program (Mtdicare) was a federally funded propam that provided1.

free or below-cost health care benests to certain individuals, prim arily the elderly, blind, and

disabled. The benefts available under Medicare were governed by federal statutes and regulations.

The United States Department of Health and Human Services, through its agency, the Centers for

. Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), oversaw and administered Medicare. lndividuals who

received benefits under M edicare were commonly referred to as M edicare ''benefciaries.''

Medicare programs covering different types of bellefits were separated into different

progrnm ''parts.'' Part D of Medicare (the ttMedicare Part D Program'') subsidized the costs of

prescdption drugs for M edicare beneficiaries in the United States. The M edicare Part D Program
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was enacted as part of the M edicare Prescription Dnzg, Improvement, and Modemization Act of

2003 and went into effect on January 1, 2006.

3. In order to receive Part D benefts, a beneiciary enrolled in a M edièare dnzg plan.

' M edicare drug plans were operated byprivate companies approved by M edicare. Those companies

were often referred to as dnzg plan ''sponsors.'' A benetkiary in a Medicare drtzg plan cotlld t1ll a
zt

prescription at a pharm acy and use his or her plan to pay for some or a11 of the prescription.

4. A pharmacy could participate in the Part D Progrnm by entering a retail neG ork

apeement directly with a plan or with one or more Pharmacy Benefit Managers (PBMs). A PBM

acted on behalf of one or more Medicare drug plan. Through a plan's PBM, a pharmacy couldjoin

the plan's network. W lwn a Part D benetkiarypresented aprescription to apharmacy, the phqrmacy

b itted a'claim either directly to the plan or to a PBM that represented the beneficiary's MedicareSu D3

dnlg plan. Thç plan or PBM determined whether the pharmacy was entitled to payment for each

claim and periodically paid the pharmacy for outstanding claims. The drug plan's sponsor

reimbursed the PBM for its pam ents to the phannacy.

5. A pharmacy could also submit claims to a Medicare dnlg plan to whose network the

pharmacy did not belong. Submission of such out-of-network claims was not common and oRen

resulted in smaller paym ents to the pharmacy by the drug plan sponsor.

6. M edicare, through CMS, compensated the M edicare drug plan sponsors. M ediiare

paid the sponsors a monthly fee for each Mcdicare benefkiary of the sponsors' plans. Such

payments were called capitation feeb. The capitation fee was adjusted periodically based on various
*

factors, including the beneficiary's medical conditions. ln addition, in som e cases where a sponsor's
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expenses for a beneûciary's prescription drugs exceeded that benefciary's capitation fee, M edicare

reimbuzsed the sponsor for a portion of those additional expenses.

7. Medicare and Medicare dzug plan sponsors were ''health care beneft progrsmlsls''

as dermed by Tiile 18, United States Code, Section 24(b).

The Defendants and a Related Companv

8. Mirnmar Pharmacy and Discount, Inc. ('çMiramar Pharmacy'') wms a Florida

corporation located àt 6320 M iramar Parkway, Suite H, M iramar, Florida, purportedly providing

prescription drugs to M edicare benefciaries.

9. RAIZA DEL CARM EN DE LEON, a resident of M iam i-Dade County, was a co-

owner, corpomte offcer and registered agent of M iram ar Pharmacy.

10. JULIO CESAR DE LEON, a resident of M iami-bade County and co-owner of

Miramar Pharmacy, was married to RM ZA bEL CARMEN DE LEON.

COUNT 1
CONSPIM CY TO COMMIT HEALTH CARE FW UD AND WlltE FM UD

(18 U.S.C. 5 1349)

The General Allegations section of this lndictm ent is re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as though fully set forth herein.

2. From in or around October 2014, through in or around November 2015, in M iam i-

Dade and Broward Counties, in the Southem  District of Flodda, and elsewhere, the defendants,

RAIZA DEL CARM EN DE LEON and

JIJLIO CESAR DE LEON

did u owingly, that is, with the intent to further the objects of the conspiràcy, and willfully combine,

conspire, confederate and agree with each other and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury,

to comm it offenses against the United States, that is:
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a.

benefit program affecting commerce, as defined in Title 18, Urlited States Code, Section 24(b),

specifically, Medicare and M edicare dnlgplan sponsors, and to obtain, bymeans of materially fâlse

and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, money and property owned by, and under

the custody and control otl saidhealth care benefkprograms, in connection with the delivery of and

to u owingly and willfully execute a scheme and artifice to defraud a health care

payment for health cazc benefits, items, and services in violation of Titlt 18, United States Code,

Section 1347; and

b. to knowingly and with the intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and property by means of materially false and

gaudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing the pretenses, representations, and

promises were false and fraudulent when made, and for the purpose of executing the scheme and

artifice, did knowingly transmit and cause to be transmitted by means of wire commuication in

interstaie and foreir  commerce, certnin writings, pictures, signs, sirals, and sounds, in violation

of Title 18, United States Code, Seciion 1343.

PURPOSE OF THE CONSPIRACY

3. . It was a pumose of the conspiracy for the defendants and their co-conspirators to

llnlawilly enrich themselves by, among other things: (a) offering and pa/ng ldckbacks for the

referral of fraudulent Medicare prescriptions to Miramar Pharmacy; (b) submitting and causing tlw

submission of false and fraudulent claims to health care benefit propnms; (c) concealing the

subm ission of false and fraudulent claim s to health care beneft program s, and the receipt arld

transfer of fraud proceeds; and (d) diverting fraud proceeds for the personal use and benefit of

themselves and others, and to further the fvud.

4
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M ANNER AND M EANS OF THE CONSPIM CY

The marmer and means by wltich the defelidants arld their co-conspirators sought to

accomplish the objects and purpose of the conspiracy included, among other things, the following:

RAIZA DEL CARM EN DE LEON and JULIO DE LEON recruited and paid

kickbacks to co-conspirators in exchange for refening M edicare beneficiades to be used in

conjlmction with false and fraudulent billing of the Medicare Part D Program through Miramar

PimrmaGy.

kAIZA DEL CAQM EN DE LEON, JULIO DE LEON and their co-conspirators

submitted and caused the submission of claims, via interstate wire commlmications, that falsely and

fraudulently represented that prescription drugs were medically necessary, prescribed by a doctor,

and had been provided to the Medicare beneficiaries by Miramar Pharmacy.

6. As a result of such false and fraudulent claims, Medicare prescription dnzg plan

sponsors, through their PBMS, made overpayments funded by the M edicare Part D Propam to the

coporate bank account of Miramar Pharmacy, in the amount of at least approximately $700,000.

RAIZA DEL CARMEN DE LEON JULIO DE LEON and their co-conspirators

used the proceeds from the false and fraudulent M edicare Part D 'claims for their own use and the

use of others, and to further the fraud.

A11 in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.

COUNTS 2-9

HEALTH CARE FRAUD

(18 U.S.C. : 1347)

1.

reference as though fully set forth herein.

The General Allegations section of this Indictment is re-alleged and incorporated by
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From in or around October 2014, through in or arotmd November 2015, in M iami-

Dade and Bmward Cotmties, in the Southem District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

itxlZA DEL CARMEN DE LEUN and
JIJLIO CESARDE LEON

in cormection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, and services, did

knowingly and willfully execute, and attempt to execute, a scheme and artifice to defraud a health

care beneftprogram affecting commerce, as defined by Title 18, United States Code, Section 244$,

that is, M edicare and M edicare dnlg plan sponsors, and to obtain, by m eans of materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, money and property owned by, and tmder the

custody and conkol of, said health care benefit programs.

3.

to lmlawfully enrich thernselves by, among other things: (a) offering and paying kickbacks for the

referral of fraudulent Medicare prescriptions to Miramar Pharmacy; (b) submitting and causing the

submission of false and fraudulent claims to health care beneEt programs; (c) concealing the

Purpose of the Scheme and Artiice

It was a purpose of the scheme and artitke for the defendants and their accomplices

submission of false and fraudulent claims to health care benefit progrnms, and the receipt and

transfer of f'raud proceeds; and (d) diverting fraud proceeds for the personal use and benefit of

themselves and othrrs, and to farther the fraud,

The Schem e and Artisce

The allegations contained in the M almer and M eans of the Conspiracy section of4
.

Cotmt 1 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth

herein as a description of tlze scheme and artifce.
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Acts in Execution or Attempted Execution of the Schem e and Artince

On or about the dates set forth as to each coun:t below, in M imni-Dade mld Broward

Cotmties, in the Southern Distdct of Blorida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

RM ZA DEL CARM EN DE LEON and

JULIO CESAR DE LEON

in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefts, items, atld services, did

knowingly and willfully execute, and attempt to execute, the above-descdbed scheme and artitke

to defraud a health care benefk progrqm affecting commerce, as defned by Title 18, United States

Code, Section 2409, that is, Medicare mld Medicare drug plan sponsors, and to obtain, by means

of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, money and property

owned by, and under the custody and control of, said health care beneft propams, in that the

defendants submiited and caused the submission of false and fraudulent claims seeking the

identified dollar nmounts, and representing that Miramar Phnrmacy prolided pharmaceutical items

and services to M edicare benetkiades ptlrsuant to physicians' orders and prescdptions:

Approximate M eduare M edjcare claim Number Item clalmed;c
ount D

ate of senesciary Approx. Am ount

claim I jm e:c a

928957385216379350929587- Seroquel XR;

2 à5/07/2015 J.B. 4973491642504071 $1403.96
584567495216379350658957- Seroquel XR;

' 3 06/05/2015 J.B. 5914950692504071 $1403.96

Seroquel AAt;

4 10/08/2015 A.R. 1565861756610060494933267 $1422.87
sudeso/de EC;

5 10/08/2015 A.R. 1568172576710000493791238 $1700.31
Budesolde EC;

6 10/29/2015 A4.B. 1570265406810000504636908 $1700.31

Tazorac;

7 10/29/2015 AI.B. 3570288251310000504636908 $1205.31
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Approxim ate M edjcare M edicare claim Number Item Claim ed;c
ount D

ate nf . j xpprox
. AmountBenenc ary

claim cjajmed

Budesonide Bc;$

8 11/13/2015 h4.B. 1571724374110000504636908 $1700.31
Tazorac;

9 11/13/2015 h4.B. 1571773772410000504636908 $1205.31

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 arid 2..

FORFEITURE

(18 U.S.C. : 982(a)(7))

The allegations contained in this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as though fully set forth herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States

of certain property in wlzich the defendants RM ZA DEL CARM EN DE LEON and JULIO DE

LEON have arl interest.

2. Upon conviction of any violation of Title 18, United States èode, Sections 1347 or

1349, as alleged in Counts 1 through 9 of the Indictm ent, the defendant so convicted shall forfeit to

the United States a11 of his or her right, title and interest in any property, real or personal, that

constitutes or is derived, directly or indirectly, from gross proceeds traceable to the com mission of

such violations, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)47).

8
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A11 pursuant to Title 18, United State's Code, Section 982(a)(7); and the procedmes set forth

at Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, as made applicable tllrough Title 18, United States

Code, Section 9820941). / /
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